
 
 
 
 

 
 

181 WEST HIGH STREET 
SOMERVILLE, NJ  08876 
 

908 927 0100 p 
908 927 0181 f 

 

  December 15, 2020 
  Via Email:  djennings@wilentz.com  
 
Donna Jennings, Esq. 
Wilentz, Goldman & Spitzer  
90 Woodbridge Center Drive 
Suite 900, Box 10  
Woodbridge, NJ  07095-0958 
 

Re: Proposed Dunkin’  
Southbound Route 27 and Veronica Avenue 

      Block 88.01; Lot 43 
      Township of Franklin, Somerset County 
 
Dear Ms. Jennings:  
 
Dolan & Dean Consulting Engineers, LLC (D&D) has prepared this letter to address the current 
Dunkin’ application at Veronica Plaza as related to review comments issued in the letter from CME 
Associates dated December 9, 2020, and Mark Healey’s November 13, 2020 letter.   
 
D&D issued a January 17, 2019 Traffic Impact Statement for 3 Ronson LLC.  At that time, a 3,000 
square foot fast-food restaurant was proposed.  The current application is for a 2,000 square foot 
Dunkin’ and a 1,000 square foot retail space.   
 
This letter updates and compares trip generation for the former and current applications, and also 
reviews the drive-thru operation.   
 
Below is Table I from our 2019 traffic study showing peak hour trip generation associated with a 
3,000 square foot fast-food restaurant with drive-thru.   
 

TABLE I 
ESTIMATED TRIP GENERATION 

3,000 SF FAST FOOD RESTAURANT WITH DRIVE-THRU 

Morning Peak Hour Evening Peak Hour Saturday Peak Hour 

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total 

77 77 154 77 77 154 83 83 166 

 
As I testified at the April 2019 hearing, ITE now has a separate Land Use Category for coffee/donut 
shops.  Historically, Dunkin’, Tim Hortons, Starbucks, etc. would have been classified as fast-food 
restaurants.  However, the last few editions of the Trip Generation Manual and Parking Generation 
Manual provide separate trip generation rates and parking demand ratios for coffee/donut shops.   
 



PROPOSED DUNKIN’         DECEMBER 15, 2020 
SOUTHBOUND ROUTE 27 AND VERONICA AVENUE 
BLOCK 88.01; LOT 43 
TOWNSHIP OF FRANKLIN, SOMERSET COUNTY 
 

2 

 
As I also testified in April 2019 the morning peak hour trip generation for coffee/donut shops is high, 
and most buildings are approximately 2,000 square feet.  I had indicated that a 3,000 square foot 
coffee/donut shop would not be likely given our experience with these types of uses. 
 
Because of the increase in trip generation associated with the introduction of a Dunkin’, D&D 
submitted a Major Access Permit Application to NJDOT.  Tables I and II summarize the total peak 
hour trip generation associated with the existing shopping center and the proposed shopping center 
with a 2,000 square foot coffee/donut shop with drive-thru.   
 

TABLE II 
EXISTING SHOPPING CENTER 
TOTAL TRIP GENERATION 

Existing Use Morning Evening Saturday Weekday 
Daily 

Weekend 
Daily 

30,490 S.F. Shopping Center 29 242 245 2,704 1,424 

 
TABLE III 

PROPOSED SHOPPING CENTER AND COFFEE/DONUT SHOP WITH DRIVE-THRU 
TOTAL TRIP GENERATION 

Existing Use Morning Evening Saturday Weekday 
Daily 

Weekend 
Daily 

31,490 S.F. Shopping Center 30 248 251 2,762 1,470 

2,000 S.F. Coffee/Donut with 
Drive-Thru 196 87 176 1,640 1,754 

Total 226 335 427 4402 3224 

 
The morning peak hour trip generation increase warrants a new Access Permit.  A copy of the fully 
executed permit is attached. 
 
The drive-thru design has not changed with the introduction of the Dunkin’  As I had testified in 
2019, ITE recommends a queuing area for 8 vehicles for drive-thru restaurant operation.  Note that 
there is no separate recommendation for coffee/donut drive-thrus.  As mentioned in Mr. Healey’s 
November 2020 letter, there is an existing Dunkin’ at School House Road/Elizabeth Avenue/New 
Brunswick Road.  The drive-thru at that location accommodates approximately 5 vehicles.  The 6th 
vehicle in queue is within the on-site intersection, and the 7th vehicle would either block the 
driveway or be positioned within the driveway.  An 8th vehicle would therefore stop on the public 
right-of-way.   
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For the new Dunkin’ at Veronica Plaza queuing for 9 vehicles is proposed, and all queuing would be 
contained on site.  If appropriate, DO NOT BLOCK THE BOX could be signed and striped at the on-
site intersection where the two-way circulation aisles and drive-thru entrance form a 4-leg 
intersection.  Otherwise, the drive-thru operations are typically self-policing.  When drive-thru 
queues become extensive, patrons generally prefer to park and enter the building.  It is recognized 
that during the recent months, drive-thru queuing at most fast-food restaurants and coffee/donut 
shops has shown increased demand because of COVID-19.   
 
We look forward to discussing our findings with the Board. 
 
      Very truly yours,  
 
      DOLAN & DEAN 

CONSULTING ENGINEERS, LLC 
 
 
 

 
      Elizabeth Dolan, P.E. 
Attachments 
 
cc: Peter Mercatili, P.E.  pmercatili@aol.com 
 
Somerset/Franklin/3Ronson/Documents/2020-12-15 Jennings Letter 


















